HOUSE FI NANCE COW TTEE
February 14, 2005
1:40 p.m

CALL TO ORDER

Co- Chair Meyer called the House Finance Conmttee neeting to
order at 1:40:39 PM

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative M ke Chenault, Co-Chair
Representative Kevin Meyer, Co-Chair
Representative Bill Stoltze, Vice-Chair
Representative Eric Croft
Representative Ri chard Foster
Representati ve M ke Hawker
Representative Jim Holm

Represent ati ve Reggi e Joul e
Representative M ke Kelly

Representati ve Bruce Weyhrauch

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Carl Mses

ALSO PRESENT

Jim Van Horn, Staff, Representative Jim E kins; Josh
Appl ebee, Staff, Representative Tom Anderson; Mark Pfeffer,
Co- Owner , Venture  Devel opnent G oup, Anchor age; Ben
Mul I'igan, Staff, Representative Bill Stoltze; R ck Urion,
Director Qccupational Licensing, Departnent of Comrunity and
Econom c Devel opnent

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Bill WIIlians, Fornmer State Legislator, Saxman; Joe
WIllians, Ketchikan; Yebe H cks, Saxman Cty Council,
Saxman; Frank Seludo, Vice Myor, Saxman; Jim Jordan,
Executive Director, Alaska State Medical Associ ati on,
Anchorage; Dr. George Stewart, Physician, Anchorage

SUMVARY

HB 42 An Act namng the Joe WIllians, Sr., Coastal
Trail.

HB 42 was reported out of Commttee with a “do
pass” recommendation and with zero note #2 by the

House Fi nance Committee 1 02/ 14/ 05 1:40 P. M



House Transportation Conmmttee for the Departnent
of Transportation & Public Facilities.

HB 102 An Act relating to the Ilicensure of foreign
nmedi cal graduates; and providing for an effective
dat e.

HB 102 was reported out of Conmttee wth a “do
pass” recommendation and with zero note #1 by the
Departnent of Comrunity & Econom c Devel opnent.

HB 115 An Act relating to charges paid or collected by
users or occupants of an airport facility owned or
controlled by the state.

CS HB 115 (TRS) was reported out of Commttee with
a “do pass” recommendation and with a zero note #1
by the Departnment of Transportation & Public
Facilities.

1:41:18 PM
#HB42
HOUSE BI LL NO. 42

An Act naming the Joe Wllians, Sr., Coastal Trail.

JI' M VAN HORN, STAFF, REPRESENTATIVE JIM ELKINS, testified in
support of HB 42. He noted that HB 42 nanes three mles of
trail alongside the South Tongass H ghway between Ketchi kan
and Saxman, the Joe WIllianms Sr. Coastal Trial.

M. Van Horn indicated that M. WIIlianms advocated for the

construction of a trail because residents from those
communities, for many vyears, |ived wthout neans of
transportation and comonly wal ked the three mles between
t he towns. M. Van Horn added that when the trail was
conpleted, it quickly becane a favorite walking and

bi cycling path used by visitors and | ocal s alike.

M. Van Horn sumrarized that passage of the legislation
woul d honor the nenory of a highly respected nenber of the
Native Conmmunity in Southeast Al aska. He pointed out the
|l etters of support in nenber’s packets and the zero fisca
not e.

1: 44: 26 PM

BILL WLLIAMS, (TESTIFIED VIA TELECONFERENCE), FORMER STATE
REPRESENTATI VE, SAXMAN, commented on the great effort that
his father put into matters of the land for Native Al askans.
He stated that Joe WIllians was a great man that worked hard
for thirty-eight years on matters related to Ketchi kan. He
urged that the Cormmittee pass HB 42.

House Fi nance Committee 2 02/ 14/ 05 1:40 P. M



Representative Wyhrauch asked if the proposal was for a
trail or bike path. M. WIllians said it would be a bike
path that would follow the South Tongass H ghway.

1:49:11 PM

JOE WLLIAVMS JR, (TESTIFIED VI A TELECONFERENCE), KETCHI KAN
di scussed that it would be a “great honor” for the Village
of Saxman and the Native community of Ketchikan to have a
trail named after their father. He voiced his support for
the | egislation.

1: 50: 20 PM

YEBE HI CKS, (TESTIFIED VIA TELECONFERENCE), SAXMAN CITY
COUNCI L, SAXMAN, testified in support of the legislation

He stated that he works with children in Saxman and thought
that namng the path after Joe WIlianms would be a “source
of pride” for Native youth. Elders used to walk that path a
long time ago. He testified in support of the |egislation,
reiterating that it wuld be an honor for the entire
comunity.

1: 51: 20 PM

FRANK SELUDO, (TESTIFIED VIA TELECONFERENCE), VICE MAYOR
SAXMAN, voiced his support for HB 42. He acknow edged t hat
Joe WIllianms did great work for the community of Ketchikan
and urged passage of the bill

1: 52: 07 PM

Representative Foster MOVED to report HB 42 out of Conmmttee
with individual recomendations and with the acconpanying
fiscal note. There being NO OBJECTION, it was so ordered.

HB 42 was reported out of Commttee wth a “do pass”
reconmmendation and wth zero note #2 by the House
Transportation Commttee for Departnent of Transportation &
Public Facilities.

1: 53: 24 PM

#HB102
HOUSE BI LL NO. 102

An Act relating to the licensure of foreign nedical
graduates; and providing for an effective date.

BEN MULLI GAN, STAFF, REPRESENTATIVE BILL STOLTZE, expl ained
the legislation, noting that the purpose was to help
alleviate the shortage of physicians in Alaska, which are
nore noticeable in the specialty fields.

House Fi nance Committee 3 02/ 14/ 05 1:40 P. M



The legislation will allow, at the discretion of the Al aska
State Medical Board, individuals graduating from foreign
nmedi cal schools, the ability to practice nedicine in Al aska.
Currently, there is a 2-year United States graduate nedica

education residency program requirenent. The proposed
| egislation would nmake it easier to practice nedicine in
Al aska. The requirenments will remain as stringent as they

currently are for persons graduating from nmedical school in
the United States.

M. Milligan pointed out that the l|ast section offers
recommendations for the board; they nmay choose not to adopt
t hose sti pul ati ons.

1:54: 47 PM

Representati ve Hawker questioned if this idea had been run
by either Providence or Regional Hospital.

Vice-Chair Stoltze advised that he had not “run it by” the
actual hospitals, however, it has been |ooked at by the
hospital representatives he net in the Capitol hall’s and
they offered “a thunbs up”.

Representati ve Weyhrauch asked the definition of an “active
medi cal practice” as outlined in Section 3. M. Milligan
offered to check that out. He pointed out that Jim Jordan,
the Executive Director of the Alaska State Medical
Associ ation was on |ine.

Representati ve Weyhrauch referenced Section 3 and asked if
the doctor was a general practioner, would they be carrying
a board certified “specialty” |icense. M. Milligan
advised that would not fall wunder the American Board of
Medi cal Specialties but thought that it would fall under the
American Medical Board. He offered to provide further
informati on on that concern.

Representati ve Weyhrauch asked if the physician did not have
a current board specialty but did have a long practice of
general nedicine, would they be excluded from being able to
practice under the proposed bill. M. Milligan advised that
the stipulations are only guidelines and nay or may not be
deci ded to be worthy requirenents.

Representati ve Weyhr auch questi oned why t hose t wo
requi renents had been set apart fromall the other possible

requirenents. M. Milligan explained that one of the
specifics was the medical specialty and that the | egislation
attenpts to fill vacancies for specific nmedical practices.

House Fi nance Committee 4 02/ 14/ 05 1:40 P. M



Representative Weyhrauch asked why the listed two hospitals
had been the only included. M. Milligan offered to provide
that information

Co-Chair Meyer noted that there are testifiers on-line that
coul d address these concerns.

1: 58:54 PM

RI CK URI ON, DI RECTOR, OCCUPATI ONAL LI CENSI NG DEPARTMENT OF
COVMUNI TY AND ECONOM C DEVEL OPMVENT, testified
enthusiastically in support for the |legislation. He clained
that licensing laws are witten in such a way that they
| eave no discretion. HB 102 would sol ve sone problens and
woul d provide the Board with opportunities to make choices
while protecting the public. He enphasized that it is
i nportant to pass the | egislation.

Representative Kelly questioned if background checks would
be made on these applicants. M. Urion advised that nost of
these people are living in the United States and have been
for many years. He did not foresee any probl ens.

2:01: 19 PM

JIM JORDAN, (TESTIFIED VIA TELECONFERENCE), EXECUTI VE
DI RECTOR, ALASKA STATE MEDI CAL ASSCCI ATI ON, ANCHORAGE, noted
he had submtted witten testinony included in nenber’s
packets. (Copy on File). M. Jordan stated that the Al aska
State Medical Association strongly supports HB 102.

M. Jordan reiterated physician shortages that exist in the
Anchorage hospitals. Providence Medical system did a study
in 2002, which indicated at that tinme, they were short 200
physi ci ans. He stressed the fact that there is a shortage
and as the State noves forward toward 2009, the shortage
wi |l becone bigger. The nunbers will only grow wthout
passage of the bill. He thought that HB 102 could help to
address these alarm ng concerns.

M. Jordan nentioned physicians currently in active
practice. He acknow edged that it is inportant to guarantee
that physicians have guidelines for applying for certain
positions; they nust be practicing and actively seeing
patients. M. Jordan advised that general practice usually
has a specialty area. For board certification, it 1is
recogni zed that to qualify for core conpetency, there woul d
be extensive peer review

M. Jordan addressed “accreditation counsel” for graduate
medi cal education from the Royal College of Physicians in
Canada. He commented that is the entity, which credits
nmedi cal education prograns in the United States and Canada.
That col | ege goes through extensive accreditation procedures

House Fi nance Committee 5 02/ 14/ 05 1:40 P. M



for graduate nedical education, primarily provided through
hospi tal s.

2: 05:43 PM

Representative Croft asked the justification for the broad
anount of discretion that the |legislation wuld provide to

the Board. M. Jordan stressed that it is a *“very
professional” State Medical Board, who would not want to
“water” down any credentials. They would be determ ning

ot her alternative measures of conpetency.

2:07:44 PM

DR. GECRGE STEWART, (TESTIFIED VIA TELECONFERENCE)
PHYSI CI AN, ANCHORAGE, voiced his support for the proposed

| egi sl ati on. He noted that he has been practicing in
Anchorage for over 30-years and is a specialist in the area
of lung disease. At present tinme, there should be 10

physicians in that area of critical care nedicine; however,
there are only 8. He pointed out that he is now 68 years
old and should have retired years ago but because of the
shortage, he professionally has not been able to do so.
Some of the other physicians with those specialties are al so
in their 60's.

The purpose of the proposed legislation is not to | ower the
standard but rather provide the Board with the discretion to
| i cense physicians that are qualified, but do not neet the
exact letter of three years of practice in the United
States. He enphasized that there is consequently, a serious
shortfall of physicians statewide, which will only becone
wor se W t hout passage of the | egislation.

Dr. Stewart voiced strong support for the proposed
| egi sl ati on.

Vice-Chair Stoltze noted that his specialist had a 3 to 4
nmonth waiting period and asked Dr. Stewart if that was
typi cal . Dr. Stewart replied that is common and for sone
new patients, the wait tinme can be as |long as 6 nonths.

Representati ve Weyhrauch referenced Section 3, recomrendi ng
a conceptual anendnent be added that the practitioner is
able to read and wite English. M. Jordan expl ai ned that
there are protections in place as the nedical boards tests
require fluency in English.

Representative Wyhrauch addressed Section 3, Section C,
suggesting to delete “nmeans” and insert “includes”. He
thought that “neans” would limt the two entities. M.
Jordan advised that the correct word is “neans”, as the
reference in that section goes back to the original body of
the Ilicensing law, which recognizes graduate nedica

House Fi nance Committee 6 02/ 14/ 05 1:40 P. M



prograns in the United States. The only bodies recognized
are the two |isted.

2:16: 52 PM

Representative Croft asked why there was a |imt to only
those two in a bill pronoting flexibility. He thought that
the discretion in Section B was renoved by the North
Anerican definition of “hospital”.

M. Jordan responded that the recognized hospital |anguage
relates to foreign nedical graduates that have satisfied the
3-year nedical graduation requirenent in the United States.
Latitude is still given, through the regulatory process, for
an equi val ency. However the State Medical Board would have
the authority to bend regulations for that specific program

Representative Croft pointed out that Sections A & B could
be either/or and were narrowWy defining the type of
hospital, which the person nust have their 2-year additional
postgraduate training at. He said that was odd; he
suggested a reqgul ation placed under “B’” to address that.

2:20: 00 PM

Co-Chair Meyer agreed with the sponsor and M. Jordan.

Representative Foster MOWED to report HB 102 out of
Committee wth individual recommendations and wth the
acconpanying fiscal note. There being NO OBJECTION, it was
so ordered.

HB 102 was reported out of Commttee with a “do pass”

recommendation and with a zero note #1 by the Departnent of
Community & Econom ¢ Devel opnent.

2:20: 45 PM

AT EASE: 2:20: 52 PM
CONVENE: 2:24: 00 PM

#HB115
HOUSE BILL NO._ 115

An Act relating to charges paid or collected by users
or occupants of an airport facility owned or controlled
by the state.

JOSH APPLEBEE, STAFF, REPRESENTATIVE TOM ANDERSQON, noted
that HB 115 woul d provide a nmechanism for custoner facility
charges or Consuner Finance Charges (CFC) to inprove airport
facilities without the expenditures of State funds. The
nost common projects that CFC s are used to fund are car

House Fi nance Committee 7 02/ 14/ 05 1:40 P. M



rental facilities. The bill provides a revenue stream to
maintain and operate the facilities, wthout requiring an
increase in the airport-operating budget, as the cost of
mai ntenance would be paid for by the related custoner
facility mai ntenance charges.

He reiterated that HB 115 woul d i npl enent a val uable private
mar ket tool to construct inprovenents to Alaska airports
w t hout the expenditure of public funds. It would help to
inprove anenities provided to the traveling public, both
Al askan and non- Al askan.

M. Appl ebee advised that this would be a private industry
initiated project, sponsored by local airport car rental
conpani es. He stated that they are in the process of
undertaking a simlar project at Ted Stevens Internationa
Airport in Anchorage. The project was delayed by 9-11
events and is now noving ahead. During negotiations with
the State over the inplenentation of the project, bond
counsel identified certain issues with |anguage set forth in
Ch. 99, SLA 2001. That | anguage needs to be clarified to
ensure that the bonds are narketabl e.

M. Appl ebee continued, issues revolve around clarifying a
new revenue stream generated by the CFC, which would not be
considered revenue for the State. The bond is a private
initiative and ensures that the bond trustee, not the State,
take custody for those funds. Wthout that clarification

the 2001 | anguage does not adequately clarify that the CFC s
are not revenues for the State to use for meking the
determ nation of whether they would are subject to pre-
exi sting airport bonds. The definition of what bond rel ated
pur poses that the CFCs can be applied to, would also clarify
i nclusion of debt reserve funds and other bond underwiter
requi renents.

M . Appl ebee pointed out that HB 115 offers:

* New j obs,

 Efficiency and innovation in the car rental market,

e Partnership with private enterprise,

* Mbderni zation to conpete with airports nationally, and
« Enhanced conveni ence.

Vice-Chair Stoltze pointed out that the Attorney GCeneral

al luded to technical changes. M. Appl ebee advised that
they were working with that office; those changes are not
substantive enough to hold the bill up.

2:28:08 PM

House Fi nance Committee 8 02/ 14/ 05 1:40 P. M



Vice-Chair Stoltze asked where in the legislative process

woul d those considerations be addressed. M.  Appl ebee
stated that until the changes are “flushed out” under the
current title, they will be addressed by the tinme the bill

passes out of the House to the Senate.

2:29: 03 PM

Representati ve Weyhrauch questioned the statenent regarding
“W thout public funds”. M. Applebee stated that the
mechani sm described in statute, the custoner facility
charges, passed on to the consuner in addition to the public
mai nt enance charges, are the funds that would be used to
construct and maintain that facility w thout public funds.

Representati ve Wyhrauch asked where in the bill was that
| anguage | ocated. M. Appl ebee explained that the |anguage
refers to the custoner facility charges and that there are
not public funds.

Representati ve Weyrauch asked if the sponsor would object to
i ncluding that | anguage. M. Applebee did not think it
woul d be appropriate within the drafting |anguage. He
thought that the sponsor would know. Representative
Weyrauch requested to incorporate that intent into the bill

Co- Chair Meyer requested that |anguage be held until full
testi nony had been taken.

Representative Hawker pointed out that the answer to that
concern was included on Page 3, Line 6, “if the State on
behal f of the departnment did not incur the indebtedness”.

2:31: 09 PM

Vice-Chair Stoltze asked if it was intended that the
| egislation only apply to international airports. M.
Appl ebee responded that the intent was to provide it to any
area that has a market that could be sustained through their
custonmer activity, to build and maintain a facility.

Vice-Chair Stoltze inquired if it would be problematic to
limt it to that and not including rural airports. M.
Appl ebee replied that the sponsor would not object to that,
however it would Ilimt themin any future circunstance and
the possibility of that area devel oping a market that could
sustain it.

Vice-Chair Stoltze pointed out that the airport in his
district, is the only rural airport that makes noney in the
State. He acknow edged that he wanted to protect the smal
busi ness owners.

2:33: 21 PM

House Fi nance Committee 9 02/ 14/ 05 1:40 P. M



Representati ve Weyhrauch understood that only the Anchorage
airport would be affected. M. Applebee replied that
currently, the only market studies and planned projects are
i n Anchor age.

Representative Weyhrauch asked how many airport facilities
in Alaska are owned and controlled by the State of Al aska.
M. Appl ebee did not know and offered to provide that
information to Comm ttee nenbers.

Representative Wyhrauch asked why the legislation would
exenpt the entire process of the Adm nistrative Procedures
Act in terns of notice and the opportunity to conment. He
pointed out that the public will be paying these fees and
the increases associated with them

Representative Weyhrauch asked why the 501-C-3's would be
exenpt from paying rent and would the public be deprived of
equal wuse of the airport. He enphasized that one entity
woul d be payi ng and another would not and how coul d that be
equal. M. Appl ebee did not know.

Representative Wyhrauch pointed out that the Departnent’s
Comm ssioner periodically adjusts the fees to pay the debt.
He asked what “periodically” nmeans. M. Appl ebee responded
that would depend on the Comm ssioner; the bill provides
sone | atitude.

2:35:42 PM

MARK PFEFFER, CO- ONNER, VENTURE DEVEL OPVENT GROUP
ANCHORAGE, not ed t hat hi s conpany has contracted
individually with the operations of 7 rental car conpanies
that operate at the Anchorage International Airport. The
project started in 2000 and was put on hold during the 9-11
events. He stated that the rental car conpani es have worked
closely with the airport in Anchorage to cone up wth a
solution to address the congestion and rental car problens
at that |ocation.

The project provides for a facility outside the Anchorage
International Airport to be connected to a rail depot
tunnel . It would allow for passengers to cone through the
tunnel and be out of the weather into a rental car |obby.
He spoke to the intended process, which could elimnate
traffic and trips to and from renote sites. The facility
woul d be paid for by a custoner facility charge and there
would be no obligation on the part of the State. Funds
woul d be generated by revenue bonds.

M. Pfeffer stated that the intent is to begin construction
by this spring. Language needs to be clarified for the bond

House Fi nance Committee 10 02/ 14/ 05 1:40 P. M



i ssuance in April 2005, whereby allow ng construction. He
offered to answer questions of the Committee.

2:39: 04 PM

Representative Wyhrauch asked if the proposal was for a
garage for parked cars. M. Pfeffer replied that it was
initially called a garage but now it is called a term nal
and it would park 1,400 cars. Representati ve Weyrauch
clarified that it will be a rental car facility.

Representative Wyhrauch inquired if there wuld be a
| ounge. M. Pfeffer understood that the |ounge would remain
in the airport termnal. Representati ve Wyhrauch asked
where that |anguage was located in the bill. M. Pfeffer
replied that was |anguage in existing legislation and that
certain sections would be anended addressing custoner
facility charges.

Representative Weyhrauch asked if the sane |anguage was in
existing statute, which exenpts the notice for the comment
period for the public. M. Pfeffer did not know referencing
Page 3, Lines 21-22, that the Departnent “shall provide a
public notice”. He stated that because of timng issues,
that will not happen.

Representative Weyhrauch clarified that since it is going to
be revenue bonds, essentially, the rental car conpanies wl|l
have a surcharge on the cars that they rent, a facility
charge, and that the revenue for that would be used for the
bondi ng purposes. M. Pfeffer responded that the car rental
conpanies will collect a charge from the custoner, which
would be remtted to a third party trustee that would pay
back the bondhol ders. That noney will never becone funds
for the State. The anticipated cost of the project is $42
mllion dollars and will be built all at one tinme, not in
phases. In response to Representative Wyhrauch, M.
Pfeffer explained that bonds sold would be in the anmount of
$42 nmillion dollars and that the facility would be
eart hquake proof and have a bonb bl ast test.

2:42: 25 PM

Representative Hawker asked if the finance community drove
the need for the |egislative change. He believed that the
change was needed so that a bond trustee could directly
receive the funds. M. Pfeffer acknow edged that was
correct and that the State could inpose the charge. 1In this
case, the industry said to the State that they did not |ike
the State’s plan and wanted to submt their own proposal.

2:44: 25 PM

House Fi nance Committee 11 02/ 14/ 05 1:40 P. M



Representati ve Wyhrauch asked if the title would prohibit
t he Fairbanks and/or Juneau area.

2:45: 49 PM

Representative Kelly asked where the clean up would be
occurring. M. Pfeffer responded that the bond insurers and
underwiters are working to clarify the |anguage in order to
get the best bond rates; that work is not quite conplete.
Language changes are run through the airport attorney, M.
John Steiner who works with the Departnent of Law. He has

provided sone stylistic changes. M. Steiner offered to
draft |anguage for the Senate Transportation Committee.
Those changes will be submitted at that tinme so that they

can be dealt wthin a transportation commttee.

2:48: 09 PM

Vice-Chair Stoltze believed that there would be a through
| ook into the legislation in the Senate.

2:48: 49 PM

Represent ati ve Hawker MOVED to report CS HB 115 (TRS) out of
Committee wth individual recommendations and wth the
acconpanying fiscal note. There being NO OBJECTION, it was
so ordered.

CS HB 115 (TRS) was reported out of Committee with a “do
pass” recommendation and wth a zero note #1 by the
Departnent of Transportation & Public Facilities.

#

DI SCUSSI ON REGARDI NG FUTURE LEGQ SLATI ON

2:49: 26 PM

Co-Chair Meyer listed the bills scheduled for future
neetings in the House Finance Committee.

In response to Representative Wyrauch’ s concerns regarding
costs associated wth the sentencing bill, Co-Chair Meyer
noted that the legislation would be noving to the House
Judiciary Committee. Representative Wyrauch noted that
there woul d be costs associated with that bill and that they
shoul d be discussed in the full House Finance Committee.

Represent ati ve Hawker requested that sone of the anendnents
be submtted soon as they are going to require substanti al
debat e.

Representative Croft noted that he did not know if the
Mnority had anmendnents to the bill, as it is such a huge

House Fi nance Committee 12 02/ 14/ 05 1:40 P. M



concept and that it would be difficult to determ nne the ful
i npact of the proposed changes.

ADJ QURNVENT

The neeting was adjourned at 2:53 P. M

House Fi nance Committee 13 02/ 14/ 05 1:40 P. M



